
Budget Committee 
Meeting Packet

June 25, 2020, 8:30 am

Zoom Video Conference 
https://zoom.us/j/5813135120 

The meeting locations are wheelchair accessible. If you need special assistance, 
 please contact Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments 

at 541-967-8720 or kcodinha@ocwcog.org, forty-eight (48) hours prior to the 
meeting.

Meeting ID: 581-313-5120 
Phone Number: 669.900.9128



This page is intentionally left blank.



1400 Queen Ave SE • Suite 201 • Albany, OR 97322 
(541) 967-8720 • FAX (541) 967-6123

OREGON CASCADES WEST COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BUDGET COMMITTEE  

AGENDA 
June 25, 2020 
8:30 – 9:00 am 

Zoom Video Conference 
https://zoom.us/j/5813135120 

Meeting ID: 581-313-5120 
Phone Number: 346-248-7799 

An Executive Session may be called as deemed necessary by the Chair, pursuant to ORS 
192.660. 

1. Welcome and Introductions (Budget Committee Chair)

(8:30 – 8:35 am) 

2. Public Comment (Budget Committee Chair)
(8:35 – 8:40 am) 

Floor will be open to the public for comment. 

3. Minutes of Previous Meetings (Budget Committee Chair)
(8:40 – 8:45 am) 

Review of the May 21, 2020 Budget Committee minutes (Page 4). 

ACTION:  Motion to approve the minutes of the May 21, 2020 Budget Committee 
meeting. 

4. Discussion Regarding FY2019-2020 Supplemental Budget (Finance Director Sue Forty)
(8:45 – 8:50 am) 

Finance Director Forty will discuss the FY2019-2020 Supplemental Budget (Page 7). 

ACTION: Motion to recommend approval of the FY2019-2020 Supplemental Budget 
 and send to the Board of Directors for approval and adoption of 
Resolution #2020-06-01 (Page 13).

5. Other Business (Budget Committee Chair)
(8:50 – 8:55 am) 

6. Adjournment (Budget Committee Chair)
(9:00 am) 

3



OREGON CASCADES WEST COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
BUDGET COMMITTEE MINUTES  

May 21, 2020 
Via Zoom Video and Audio Conferencing 

Attendees: Commissioner Claire Hall, Lincoln County; Commissioner Pat Malone, 

Benton County, Commissioner Will Tucker, Linn County; Mayor Sharon 

Konopa, Albany; Mayor Jim Lepin, Millersburg; Mayor Biff Traber, Corvallis; 

Carolyn Mendez-Luck, SSAC; Jan Molnar-Fitzgerald, DSAC. 

Staff: Finance Director, Sue Forty; Technical Services and Operations Director, 

John Haytas; Seniors and Disabilities Director, Randi Moore; Human 

Resources Manager, Ryan Schulze; Executive Assistant Kathleen Codinha 

The Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments’ (OCWCOG) Budget Committee Meeting 
was called to order by Chair Mayor Sharon Konopa on May 21, 2020 at 12:18 pm via Zoom Video 
and Audio Conferencing, at which time everyone formally introduced themselves.  

1. Election of Budget Chair and Secretary

The current Chair, Mayor Sharon Konopa, opened the floor for nominations for Budget Committee

Chair and Secretary of the Budget Committee because they must be voted upon once a year.

Currently, the Budget Committee Chair is also the Finance Committee Chair.

Commissioner Claire Hall volunteered to be the Budget Committee Chair for the upcoming year 

and nominated Mayor Biff Traber for the position of Secretary of the Budget Committee. 

Commissioner Pat Malone moved to close nominations and motioned to appoint Commissioner 

Hall as Chair of the Budget Committee and Mayor Traber as Secretary of the Budget Committee.  

Mayor Jim Lepin seconded the motion. A vote was taken and passed unanimously. 

2. Public Comment

Commissioner Hall, acting as the newly appointed Budget Committee Chair opened the floor for

public comments. No public, no comment.

3. Minutes of Previous Meeting

Consideration of July 17, 2019 Budget Committee Meeting Minutes: Chair Commissioner Hall

asked if there were any additions or corrections to the Meeting Minutes and if not, entertained a

motion for approval.  Mayor Konopa moved to approve; Mayor Lepin seconded. A vote was taken

and passed unanimously.

4. Fiscal Year (FY) 2020-2021 Annual Work Program and Budget Review

Finance Director Sue Forty began by welcoming Carolyn Mendez-Luck and Jan Molnar

Fitzgerald, representatives from SSAC and DSAC, respectively.

The budget format is the same as it has been presented every year except for a few edits 

and the way the Program Reports were completed to add specific information that is more 

fluid and direct to the Program.  

4



The full time employee (FTE) being represented is 188.7 while last year it was 165.52; an addition 

of 22.97 for the Agency.  This is due in large part to Senior and Disability Services (SDS) staffing 

Director Randi Moore by increasing revenues for next year’s budget.  

Last year the Agency had $40,797,434 for the total budget, while this year OCWCOG has an 

increase of approximately 5M$, mostly due to additional funding obtained by SDS. Additional 

carry forward dollars are about $1M from SDS Programs because of additional staff.  OCWCOG 

is a vendor with Title 19 Programs and procure 1/24th of a payment Budget.  If funds are left over 

at the end of the year, those funds carry forward.  

Rent was increased by two cents per square foot, per building.  The building in Toledo is now at 

$1.12 per square foot and the building in Albany is at $1.22 per square foot.  These rental rates 

are far below standard retail market value for Class “A” space, which is passed on to OCWCOG 

Programs.   

A supplemental budget will be done in September due to many changes: with COVID-19, 

adjustments were made and now a limited number of staff are working in the building, and funding 

is coming in different forms for specific programs.  

OCWCOG has also experienced changes to staffing which will affect the budget: the Community 

Services Program Director position had to be terminated, a decision to eliminate the Deputy 

Director position, and adding a Technology Services and Operations Director in its place.  

Due to these changes, OCWCOG will be adopting this budget, similar to the draft budget and will 

present the supplemental budget in September to ensure all these changes are reflected.   This 

is not a violation to the Oregon Budget Law. There is plenty of appropriation until September, 

when a special meeting will be called to adopt the supplemental budget.  

Finance Director Forty opened the floor for questions. 

Carolyn Mendez-Luck, SSAC representative asked how COVID-19 has affected these budgets in 

regards to SSAC and SDS. What will the impact be?  

Finance Director Forty stated OCWCOG is currently working on two CARES ACT 

reimbursements: the Older Project Independence (OPI) and Older American Act (OOA) have 

additional funds allocated for COVID-19 related expenses. OCWCOG has experienced quite a 

few COVID-19 related expenses such as hand sanitizer, additional meals, additional hours by 

staff, laptops, monitors, cabling, technology related items, etc. There is an opportunity to request 

additional funds through the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), but that is a long 

shot. The CARES ACT has committed dollars to OCWCOG and others, so most likely the 

recovered funds will come from them.  

SDS Program Director Randi Moore stated that an additional $600,000 was received through 

OOA and other COVID-19 funded programs specifically related to feeding people that are isolated 

at home or can’t afford to feed themselves. Instructions from the State are to use those funds 

sooner rather than later, which allows OCWCOG to hold on to other funds that can be used at a 

5



later date. Funds from OOA seems more stable and not at risk and will be able to carry forward 

funds which was not allowed in the past. The State is allowing more flexibility because of COVID-

19 but is talking about significant budget cuts on programs such as Aging and People with 

Disabilities (APD). The State is considering a 17% cut for this fiscal year. Because of this, SDS is 

considering slowing down on hiring. When the fall revenue forecast comes out, it will be easier to 

predict what the long term implications will be and to make a plan forward.  

Mayor Lepin read the Budget in full and applauded the finance team for all the work, detail, and 

dedication that went into providing these reports.     

Commissioner Malone queried SDS Director Moore about the next revenue forecast that will 

come out in August, and asked what time period the report covered that came out yesterday? 

With things changing so quickly, Commissioner Malone deems it important to know the timeframe 

that the forecast is based on. 

With no further questions, Chair Commissioner Hall opened the floor to entertain first motion to 

recommend approval of the FY2020-2021 Annual Work Program and Budget.  Mayor Konopa 

made a motion to send the FY2020-2021 Annual Work Program and Budget to the Board of 

Directors for final approval and adoption. Mayor Traber seconded the motion. A vote was taken 

and passed unanimously. 

Mayor Konopa moved to approve the Official Budget and recommend adoption of Resolution 

2020-05-04: Adoption of the Agency Budget for Fiscal Year 2020-2021 to the Board of Directors. 

Mayor Traber seconded the motion. A vote was taken and passed unanimously. 

5. Discussion regarding FY 2019-2020 Supplemental Budget

Finance Director Forty gave an update regarding the Supplemental budget due to COVID-19

related additional revenues and expenditures not appropriated in the 2019-2020 Budget.  She

asked for a special session of the Budget Committee in June to review the Supplemental Budget

for FY 2019-2020 so it can be approved and adopted in September.  In addition, an FY 2020-

2021 Supplemental Budget will need to be put in place to capture all the ramifications of COVID-

19.

ACTION: Kathleen Codinha to poll for dates in June for a special session of the Budget Committee 

to review, approve, and adopt the FY 2019-2020 Supplemental Budget.   

6. Other Business

None

7. Adjournment

Chair Commissioner Hall adjourned the meeting at 12:40 p.m.

Meeting minutes taken by Kathleen Codinha. 

6



M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: June 25, 2020 

TO: Budget Committee and Board of Directors 

FROM: Sue Forty, Finance Director 

RE: Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Budget 

After the budget supplemental pages were adopted in July of 2019, Oregon Cascades West 
Council of Governments (OCWCOG) was the recipient of additional funds to enhance service in 
four (4) program areas: 

1. NOTE FOR SDS TITLE XIX FEDERAL FUNDS:

With the rollout of Integrated Eligibility across the State, funds were provided to Area
Agency on Aging (AAA) offices to support a successful implementation of the

system. This resulted in an increase in contracts revenue of about $200,000. The

funds were designed to hire staff in the role of local area experts for the process and

programs. SDS hired an Eligibility Specialist and a Program Supervisor; their salaries

and other related costs are now represented.

2. NOTE FOR VETERANS:

The supplemental is to increase contract revenue from Benton County and Oregon

Department of Veterans Affairs.

3. NOTE FOR MOW:

a) The Older American Act generated additional funding from Federal COVID-19
funding specifically to meet the needs of an increase in required services.

b) Senior Meals XIX shows an increase due to a per meal rate increase from $9.54
per meal to $11.75 per meal as of April 1, 2020. Meals on Wheels feeds
approximately 255 Title XIX clients and with the increase in rate, there will be
additional revenue of $270,881. The Program Supervisor with assistance from
the Administrative Assistant have streamlined the billing process which allows for
the correct billing for each client.

c) Contract Revenue: Trio Community Food Services, per contract, has invested

$14,000 per year, for the next four years, in the purchase of equipment and

vehicles for Meals on Wheels.

d) Contract Expenses were increased due to purchasing Shelf Stable Meals and
frozen meals in contingency of an individual site or program closing due to
COVID-19. Additionally, there have been an increase in clients due to shelter in
place orders.  All additional revenue will be utilized to meet the increase in
demand for meals and to ensure contingency operations are in place.

7



e) Grant Revenue: A reduction is reflected due to the inability to find additional
grant opportunities, in conjunction with a decrease in funding from usual
grantors. To remedy this, the Program Supervisor will search out additional grant
funding streams to generate sufficient funding for the program.

f) Donations were reduced most likely from usual funds being diverted to COVID-
19.

4. NOTE FOR CED PLANNING ODOT FUNDS:

OCWCOG received a Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund (STIF) discretionary

grants for two projects. One is to explore providing a “seamless” experience for transit

users across its tri-County Region and the other is for a corridor study to determine

feasibility of transit service on Highway 99W.

Currently, seven transit agencies operate across Linn, Benton, and Lincoln Counties, all
with different fares, schedules, and routes. While agencies coordinate internally, the goal
of this Seamless Transit Project is to provide the same level of coordination to the public,
thereby creating a seamless transit experience for the traveler.

The project is divided into two phases. The first phase focuses on expanding services
OCWCOG currently offers to Non-Emergent Medical Transportation (NEMT) clients,
including transportation drive training and travel training. The second phase involves a
centralized information portal, real time bus information availability, and a mobile
ticketing application.

OCWCOG is conducting a Highway 99W Transit Feasibility Study to evaluate demand
for transit along the HWY 99W corridor from McMinnville to Junction City. Currently there
are gaps in transit service along the route this project aims to connect (see map below).
In addition to providing or improving transit access to Monroe, Adair Village and
Monmouth/Independence, the corridor has potential to connect the three largest
metropolitan areas in the State of Oregon with existing transit providers.

The Study originated from the Benton County Transportation System Plan (TSP) and is
supported by the Salem-Keizer Transit District Long Range Plan. Connecting smaller,
rural communities is also highlighted in the Oregon Public Transportation Plan, and the
Regional Chapter of the Lincoln, Benton, and Linn Human Services Coordinated Plan.

The agency feels it is important to have a budget that reflects the most accurate
numbers available.  This supplemental budget brings the revenue and expenditures for
the agency in line with what will actually be received and expensed.

Thank you for your time and assistance. If you have any questions or want clarification,
please feel free to give me a call.

8



9



10



11



12



RESOLUTION #2020-06-01 

Adoption of Supplemental Budget for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors adopted a fiscal year 2019-2020 budget at the May 16, 2019 

Board Meeting and a Supplemental Budget July 18, 2019 Board meeting; and 

WHEREAS, Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments became aware of a condition that 

had not been ascertained at the time of the preparation of the budget for the current year which 

requires a change in the fiscal year 2019-2020 budget.    

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

That the Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments Board of Directors does hereby adopt the 

supplemental budget listed below: 

ADOPTED SUPPLEMENTAL.2 NEW ADOPTED 

REVENUE 2019-2020 
Change for 2019-

2020 2019-2020 

Beginning Fund Balance 10,901,004 10,901,004 

State Revenue  1,767,749 246,248 2,013,997 

Federal Revenue  13,172,333 2,463,573 15,635,906 

Local Revenue  1,251,049 -100,903 1,150,146 

Program Revenue 13,804,629 14,000 13,818,629 

Total Revenue 40,896,764 2,622,918 43,519,682 

EXPENDITURES 

Personnel 16,325,728 402,859 16,728,587 

Materials and Services 24,509,703 2,220,059 26,729,762 

Leasehold  0 0 

Principal Payments 43,333 43,333 

Interest Payments 18,000 18,000 

Total Expenditures 40,896,764 2,622,918 43,519,682 

Balance 0 0 0 

ADOPTED this 25th day of June 2020 at the Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments’ 

Board meeting in Albany, Oregon. 

Biff Traber Claire Hall 
Co-Chair Co-Chair 

13



Cascades West Center 
1400 Queen Avenue, SE Suite 201 

Albany, OR 97322 
541.967.8720

14




